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STAFF REPORT (All suggestions /recommendations in the report are advisory) 

TO : Allentown City Planning Commission  

FROM : Planning Bureau 

SUBJECT : RE-ZONING OF 1837 WEST LINDEN STREET FROM RM TO B3 (Z Case #21-3)  

DATE : November 9, 2021 

Background 
 
1) The subject refers to a petition to change the zoning designation of the parcel on 1837 W. Linden 

from Residential – Medium Density (RM) to Highway Business District (B3).  The petition comes 
from the property owner, Webster Place Associates – represented in this petition by Malkames Law.  
The petition did not indicate what specific use is being contemplated for the property.  However, it 
mentioned that re-zoning this parcel to B3 seems appropriate as it sits diagonally across another 
B3 parcel located on the southwest corner of 19th and Linden (see Figure 1), and that the subject 
property is located on an arterial street with many uses that are highway-oriented. 
 

2) Figure 1 is an aerial photo of the general vicinity of the subject property with color-coding for the 
existing zoning districts therein.  It shows that the immediate area hosts a number of zoning districts 
like RM, RMH and B3, and a city block further are lands zoned IG (or Institutional-Government).  

Fig-1. Aerial shot of the vicinity showing subject property and current zoning (as color-coded) in the immediate area.  
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3) Figure 2, in turn, shows the existing land uses in that area. It contains a variety of uses like single-

family housing and multi-unit housing (for general occupancy and for seniors). As well, the 
immediate area contains office buildings and, a restaurant and a neighborhood plaza.  A block further 
east and west are William Allen HS and the J. Birney Crum playing field that connects to the parkland 
of Cedar Beach.  In terms of number and acreage, the most dominant uses of land are for residential 
purposes. 

 
4) The subject property contains a 2-story building with on-site parking in the front and rear yards.  

From its exterior appearance the building seems well-maintained.  The applicant mentioned that the 
building is currently occupied – on Special Exception -- by a health care business concern and a 
laboratory facility (phlebotomist). 1  For a long while, however, this building has always housed 
medical offices on Special Exception. 

 
Comments /Findings 

 
5) Primarily due to the proximity of William Allen HS, Cedar Beach Park and the adjacency of 

Muhlenberg College, Vision 2030 idealizes this part of west Allentown – in general – to remain as a 
host for safe, walkable and bikeable connections and greenspace network, with healthy and 
complementary interplay among residential, institutional, and commercial land uses (pages 216-
224).   
 

6) While there seems to be no conflict in mixing a variety of uses in this area, staff believes that this is 
because the existing uses therein are deemed compatible or complementary with each other.  As 
such, we differ from the applicant’s opinion that there are highway-oriented uses in that area. 
a) In the hierarchy of streets, moreover, these segments of W. Linden Street and N. 19th Street are 

actually “collector” streets; not “arterials.”  They collect vehicular traffic from the neighborhood 
roadways and feed these onto either Hamilton Street or Cedar Crest Blvd which function as the 

                                           
1 In June 2020, an application to locate a childcare center on this property by Special Exception was denied by the ZHB since childcare 

centers may be only be allowed in this area if it were an accessory use to either a place of worship, hospital, community center, primary 
or secondary school, or similar principal institutional uses. 

Fig-2. Aerial photo of the vicinity showing the subject property and adjacent land uses. 
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arterials in this area, and which arterials – in turn – lead that vehicular traffic onto the freeways 
of I-75 and US-22. 

b) Likewise, the B3 parcel that sits catty corner from the subject property on the southwest corner 
of 19th and Linden abuts a segment Hamilton, which is an arterial street suitable for such zoning. 

 
7) In Allentown, B3 Districts were created to provide locations for highway oriented and other retail 

uses and services for large areas of the city and beyond.  As such, B3 Districts are usually found 
along busy arterials like certain segments of Hamilton Street, Tilghman Street, Hanover Avenue, 
Lehigh Street, and South 4th Street.  Indeed, if a re-zoning to B3 were granted it would accord the 
property a greater flexibility to locate other business-types otherwise not permitted in more 
protected zoning districts. Attachment 1 contains lists of uses permitted in B3 Districts by-right and 
special exception.  For comparison, the lists include similarly permitted uses in RM Districts. 
 

8) Admittedly, there are business-types first-allowed in B3s that do not seem to present conflicts with 
existing, established uses in the subject area (such as an art gallery, financial services, offices).  
Some are even deemed compatible (such as a gym, personal services, a coffee shop, or a variety 
store).  In the same breath, however, there are also business-types allowed by-right in B3s that are 
considered inimical to the preservation of the established social fabric in the area (like a gas station, 
an animal clinic, a bar/tavern, an auto repair shop, or some light manufacturing ventures).   

 
9) In cases of speculative zoning, such as this one, it is important to be mindful that anything allowed 

by-right in B3s can potentially locate in that property.  When considering the merits of a proposed 
rezoning, Staff is guided by the following: 
a) The uses must be compatible (or consistent) with adjacent or emerging land uses. 

b) The uses must be supportive and consistent with the housing, economic development, 

employment objectives espoused by the current comprehensive plan.  

c) The uses much be accommodated by existing or potential infrastructure capacity. 

d) The uses must be in accordance with the environmental policies of the plan. 

 

10) As implied in Item 8, not all uses allowed by-right are deemed inimical to the established uses in 
that area – which the city wishes to preserve and promote.  Once re-zoned, that new designation is 
attached to the property not the owner.  The property would be able to take on any use allowed in 
that zoning class whether that use is supportive of or inimical to the established uses in that area. 
 

11) Staff would rather err on the side of caution, rather than allow land uses that may create conflicts 
whose negative impacts may be difficult, if at all possible, to reverse. 

 
Summary 

12) Based on Items 9 and 10, Staff is not inclined to endorse the proposed re-zoning. 
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